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SuPLEE, Cr,ooNEY & CoMPANY
Cpnrrrrno Puslrc AccourqtANTs

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07O9O-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Commissioners
Rahway Valley Sewerage AuthoritY
Rahway, New Jersey 07065

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Rahway Valley Sewerage

Authority, as of and forthe years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the

financialstatements, which iollectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in

the table of contents.

M a n age m enf 's Respo n si b i I ity fo r th e F i n a nci a I S(afemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentat'lon of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Au d ito r's Respon si bil itY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in iccordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicabte to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U'S.

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit RequiremLnts for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financiai statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design

audit procedures thbt are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion'

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accouhting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.



Supr.ps, Cr,ooNnv a CorvlpeNv

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fakly, in all material respects,
the respective financial positlon of the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority, as of December 31, 20'19

and 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the basic financial statements, during the year ended December 31,
2018, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Repofting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Penslons (OPEB). Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Requ ired Su ppl ementary I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion analysis and the schedules related to accounting, reporting for pensions in
Schedule R-1 through R-3, and the schedule related to accounting and reporting for postretirement
benefits other than pensions (OPEB) in Schedule S-1 through S-3 are presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers il to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial slatements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency wilh management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Supr,nr, Cr,ooNnv c CortPeNY

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectivl[ comprise the Rahway Valtey Sewerage 
. 
Authority's basic financial statements. The

supplemental data schedules and'schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2

U.b. Coae of Federal Regutations (CFR) Part 2OO, uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

inciptes, and Audit Reqiirements ior Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional

analyiis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements'

The supplemental data schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards' as required

by the uniform' Guidance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate

direcfly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the.basic financial slatements'

Such information nas been suOieited to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
-the 

basic

financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and _reconciling such

inroir"tion oir""tly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial

itatements or to the basic financ]al statemjnts themselves, and other additio_nal procedures in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of America' ln our

"pi"i"n, 
in" supplementil data sched-ules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly

siateO, in all matbrial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standerds

ln accordance with Govemment Auditing standards, we have also issued our report dated

nugust iO, ZOZO on our consideration ofthe Ratiway Valley Sewerage Authority's internal control over

finJncial reporting and on oui tests of its compliince with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements and other maiters. The purpose of that report. iS to describe the

""op" 
oib,1 t"iting ot'internai control over financial reporting and compliance.and the results of that

i"rti.g, 
""a 

not to-provide an opinion on internal conirol.over financial reporting or on compliance'

iffii ;p;'t is an integral part'of an audil performed in- accordance with Government Auditing

Stanaaris in consideriig tfie ianway Valley Sewerage Authority's internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

August 20, 2020 fu-,q:47
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2019 T]NAI]DITED

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in
conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements and supplementary information.

OVERYIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCAL REPORT

The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial condition

and performance. Summary financial statement data, key financial and operational indicators used in
the Authority's budget, bond resolutions and other management tools were used for this analysis'

The Authority's audited financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles as applied to governmental units. The basic financial statements include:

Statements of Net Position; Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position;

Statements of Cash Flows; and Notes to Financial Statements.

The Statements of Net Position present the Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Outflows of
Resources and Total Net Position of the Authority on a historical cost basis. Over time, increases and

decreases in the components of the Authority's Total Net Position are indicators of whether the

financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statements of Net Position provide information about the nature and amount of resources

and obligations at year-end, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

present the results of the business activities over the course of the Fiscal Year and information as to

how the net position changed during the year.

The Statements of Cash Flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operating,

financing, and investing activities. These statements present cash receipts and cash disbursement

informatlon, without consideration of the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of
capital assets.

The Notes to Financial Statements (Notes) provide required disclosures and other information that are

essential to an understanding of material data provided in the basic financial statements. The Notes

present information that include accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,

material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.



AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL REPORT

Condensed Statements of Net Position

Assets

Unrestricted assets

Restricted assets

Capital assets, at cost

Ac cumulated depre ciatbn
Defened outflow of resources

Total assets

Cr:rrent liabilities:

Payable from unresticted assets

Payable from restricted assets

Total current liabilitie s

Long-term debt, net of current

maturities

NJEIT Interim Financing

Net pension Iiability

Net OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:

Credits on debt refundings

Deferred bond premium

Pension related

OPEB related

Total Deferred inflows of resources

Total net position

December 31

2019 2018 2017

$ 7,864,623 $ 7978A05 S 7975,334

7,769,782 7,802224 11,752,525

279,7&,638 277J31,991 272,862236

(t00,917,362) (91979A27) (83,256,653)

3.193.325 5.036227 4.523.712

s 197.07s.006 s205.669420 5212.957.1*

$ 1,360,956 $ 1,732239 $ 1177270

t3277.747 12.655.544 12.393.170

$ 14,638,703 $ 14387,783 $ 13,870,440

119,500,016 127,989,261 136,394,599

6,567,507

10,783,169

6,567,507 6210,947

11,889,949 13,379,199

10.174.860 12.8s8.377 15.761.806

s 147.025.552 $ 1s9.30s.094 $ 171.746.551

$ 161.6642ss $ 173.692.877 $ 18s.616.991

$ 1,616,874 $ t,974A81 $ 2332,088

50,307 53J56 57206

4,066A14 3,990,168 2,710,167

82t6As 6.16s.098 2.090.578

$ 13.950.059 $ 12.183.503 $ 7.190.039

$ 2t.4r,0.692 $ 19.793.M0 $ 20.1s0.124

Total liabilities. deferred inflows of resources.

and total net positbn llgros0A I 201669320- SAUfle-

Unrestricted assets of $7.9 million at December 31, 2019, consists principally of cash and cash

equivalents of $3.4 million and receivables of $4.4 million. The $4.4 million in receivables largely
includes a litigation settlement. Total current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets at December

31,2019 of $1.4 million consisting of accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Restricted assets of $7.2 million at December 37, 2019 consists of cash and cash equivalents of $6.3

million and $.9 million related to capital project funds held by the New Jersey Infrastructure Bank
(NJB).



TheAuthority,s capital assets, atcost, atDecember3l,20lg and2018 amountedto $279.8 millionand

$277.7 million, reipectively. Reference is made to the Authority's Year 2002 Capital Improvement

program (CIp). N"t proplmy, plant and equipment at December 3L, 2019 and 2018 amounted to

$178.8 million and $185.7 million, respectively.

Total liabilities of the Authority at December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $161.6 million and

5173.7 million, respectively, of which $131.2 million and $139.4 million, respectively, relate to debt

obligations principally attrilbutable to the funding of capital asset additions under the Authority's Year

2OOz Cp . Additional temporary/interim finaniing was secured from NIIB totaling $6.6 million to

provide financing for additional irojects related to the Authority's Digester Covers and Gas Flares and

ihe constmction Lf a Food wasti Siation. The Authority's debt obligations outstanding at December

3l,2olg relate to financing under the New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank (NJIB) Loan Program ($69.1

miilion; and the accreted ialue of capital Appreciation Bonds (568.7 million). In addition, Total

Liabilities include a Net pension Liability of $iO.A million and $11.9 million, and a net OPEB liability

of S10.2 million and $12.9million at December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively'

Deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2019 and 2018 of $13.9 million and $12.2 million,

respectively, relate principally to credits on debt refundings as well as Pension and OPEB obligations'

Total Net position of the Authority at December 3l,2olg and 2018 amounted to $20 million in each

year. Net Position includes:

Net lnvestment in CaPital Assets

Restricted
Unrestricted, ApproPriated
Unrestricted, UnaPProPri ated

Unrestricted, Rate Stabilization Fund

Unrestricted, Net Pension Related

Unrestricted, Net OPEB Related

2019 201 8

Thousands

$39,662 $39,622
9,561 8,878

750 348
1,335

200
(12,497) (12,015)
(17.ss0) fl8.048)
v]]16L $19-793

908
r00

An appropriation of $750 thousand and $348 thousand of the Unrestricted Net Position in each of the

y.-. .no.a December 3l,2olg and 2018 has been made to fund a portion of the Years 2020 and2019

Operating Budgets, resPectivelY.
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Condensed Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Chanqes in Net Position

Years Ended December 3l
2019 2018

$ 27,806,972 S 26,017215Operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Costs of providing services

General and a&ninistrative

Pension expense charge

OPEB expense adjustnent

Total operating elpens e s, before deprec iation

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating income/(expense), net:

Interest expense, net

Other income, net

Net income (loss)

Net Postion:

Beginning of year

Restatement to inchrde net OPEB liabilty

Net position beginmng of year-restated

Net Position end of year

$ 22.324.473 $ 22.132.3t8 $ 21298.781

$ 5,482y'99 $ 3,8M,897 $ 3,566,565

$ (4,286343) $ (4,43,253) $ (4,588,071)

471496 201.272 315.831

$ 1,667,652 $ (357,084) S (705,675)

$ 9,879,345

3,498,608

482J00
(498.030)

$ 13,362,623

8,961.850

$ 9,314,104

3,588,528

269,lll
198.M6

$ 13,369,789

8.762.529

20t7

$ 24,865346

$ 8,509,773

3,485201

548,358

177.715

$ 12,72t947

8.577.734

$ 38,527,767

s (17,671,968)

$ 19,793,0+0 $ 20,150,t24
q-q_

$ 19,793,M0 $ 20,150,124 $ 20,955,799

$ 21.460.692 $ t9.793M0 $ 20.150.124

Budgeted and realized member annual assessments included in operating revenues for the years ended
December 31,2019 and 2018, amounted to $26.3 million and $25.1 million, respectively. Member
annual assessments represent 95% and 96Yo of total operating revenues realized in the years ended
December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

Total operating expenses for the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018 were $22.3 million and
$22.1 million, respectively. Operating expenses consist principally of personnel related costs, utilities,
residual disposal, maintenance, compliance monitoring and professional services.

Operating income in the Year 2019, net of depreciation expense of $8.9 million, was $5.5 million as

compared to operating income in the Year 2018 of $3.9 million.

7



lnterest expense in 2019 amounted to $4.3 million as compared to $4.4 million in 2018'

Net income in the year 2019 was $1.7 million as compared to net loss of $357 thousand in the Year

201g. T\e 2Ol9 increase in net income is principally attributable to an increase in Net Operating

Income of $1.6 million. This increase is attributable to increased Discharge, Permit, Food Waste,

Trucked-in Low-Strength Waste and Other Fees.

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2or9 2018 2017

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 14,119,806 $ 13239,747 $ 12,638,993

Ner cash used in capital and fnancing activities (13p87,666) (12,926,160\ (13,913,979)

Net cash provided by investing activities 124446 @J74 31'195

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year

End of year

$ 1,156,586 $ 378,361 $ (1,243,791)

8.450283 8.071.922 9.315.713

$---9.606,869 $--8350283 s---8.021922

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $14.1 million and $13.2 million in the years

ended December 31 , 2019 and 201 8, respectively'

Net cash used in capitaVfinancing activities in the Years 2019 and 2018 relate principally 19.tht
funding of constructiin projectr, u]nd debt service payments. Payments for net capital asset additions

in the year 201g *.r.'s1.6 -illio, as compared to $4.8 million in 2018. Debt service payments

amounted to $13.0 million in each of the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018'

Net cash provided by investing activities amounted $124 thousand and $65 thousand in the Years 2019

and 2018, respectively, and relates to interest income'

I



AUTHORITY OVER\rIEW

General

The Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority and its predecessor, known as the Rahway Valley Joint

Meeting, has provided for the disposal of sewage wastes collected in the Rahway Valley region since

1937. On Oitober 20, 1928, a contract was e,ntered into by the nine municipalities, that is, the

Boroughs of Garwood, Kenilworth and Roselle Park, the City of Rahway, the Town of Westfield and

the Townships of Clark, Cranford and Springfield all in Union County and the Township of
Woodbridge in Middlesex County. The purpose of such conhact, as amended on March 3, 1932 and

August 3i, 1936, was jointly to construct, maintain, rebuild, repair and operate trunk sewers and a

r.*g. treatment plant within the Ratrway Valley, such municipalities being united in a Joint Meeting

pursuant to statute. The Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority was created by virtue of parallel

ordinances adopted in 1951 by the goveming bodies of the Member Municipalities. Scotch Plains and

Mountainside became members in 1995 and 1999, respectively. The Authority has perpetual existence

as a public body politic and corporate constituting a political subdivision of the State of New Jersey.

The Authority had 54 employees as of December 31,2019, including its Executive Director and

Secretary/Treasruer, of which 30 employees are represented by the United Steel Workers Union.

Service Agreement

The present Service Agreement includes the Boroughs of Garwood, Kenilworth, Mountainside and

Roselle Park, the City of Rahway, the Town of Westfield, and the Townships of Clark, Cranford,

Scotch Plains, Springfield and Woodbridge, Municipal Corporations of the State of New Jersey.

Pursuant to the Service Agreement, the Authority prepares a statement of its Municipality Service

Charges each Fiscal Year which includes all amounts required for payment during such Fiscal Year of
Operating Expenses, Debt Service, Reserves and other requirements. The Authority then allocates the

uirious amounts set forth in its statement of charges amongst the individual Municipalities principally

on the basis of their proportional average daily share of the use of the System (flow, biochemical

oxygen demand and total suspended solids). Each Municipality's share of the arurual service charge is

due and payable in two equal installments on April I and July I of each Fiscal Year. The obligations

of each Municipality under the Service Agreement are not joint and several. A Municipality may sell

or assign its unused authorized flow rights as may be determined by the Authority, in whole or in part,

to a member Municipality or to a nonmember municipality subject, however, to a right of first refusal

reserved to the member Municipalities.
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The Svstem

The Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority Service Area is located in Union and Middlesex Counties.

The estimaied population served is 250,000 with an additional 3,500 commercial and industrial

facilities. The Authority owns and operates Trunk Sewer Lines varying in size from 36" to'72"
diameter and four major Spur Lines varying in size from 15" to 36" in diameter. The constnrction of
the 17.5-mile collection ryit"- was completed in 1930. The collection system flows by gravity to the

Authority's treatment plant.

The treatment plant is located on the borders of Rahway and Woodbridge and was placed into

operation in 19j7. Upgrades and expansion over the past few years have resulted in a facility that now

accommodates wet wJather flows of up to 105 MGD. Gravity Relief Sewers were constructed to

covey peak wet weather flows to the facility. One Combined Sewer Overflow was closed and another

Combined Sewer Overflow was reconfigured as an emergency plant protection system. Tertiary

treatment utilizing sand filters, an ultraviolet disinfection system and other treatment facility
enhancements were added to improve the quality of the effluent discharged into the Arthur Kill in
Carteret. The Authority disposes its anaerobic digested, dewatered, and dried sludge to third parties

who use the material for beneficial use.

The Authority's Year 2002 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) included the following segments: (i)

improvements to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP), consisting of new influent pumping, grit

and screenings removal, additional primary and secondary settling tanks, upgraded aeration system,

filtration, UV dirinf.ction, cascade aeration, effluent pumping, improved sludge thickening facilities

and related appurtenances; (ii) a Gravity Relief Sewer (GRS); and (iii) a power generating sludge

drying facility lCogeneration Facility). The cost of the CIP was approximately 5225 million of which

9i%ielatedto projects required under a Judicial Consent Order (JCO) that is discussed in the caption

(Litigation Settiement rela-ted to the Capital Improvement Program). Reference is also made to the

captions (Litigation and Related Matters) and (Commitments and Contingencies) concerning additional

comments related to the Authority's Year 2002 CIP.

10



Municinali8 Service Charees

Budgeted and realized member municipality annual assessments for the years ended December 31,

2Ol9,2Ol8 and2017 (representing a substantial portion of operating income in each year) follow:

Municipality

Woodbridge
Ratrway
Westfield
Springfield
Clark
Cranford
Scotch Plains
Kenilworth
Mountainside
Garwood
Roselle Park

2019

$ 6,939,142
3,991,702
4,068,672
2,646,409
2,149,595
1,852,138
1,511,843
1,052,977

978,076
749,523
351.423

$26290t00

2018

$ 6,535,702
4,124,409
3,770,425
2,598,606
1,997,106
1,671,502
1,430,752

908,922
927,921
697,718
396.938

$25.060000

2017

$ 6,355,627
4,262,958
3,512,422
2,537,893
2,059,105
1,626,63r
1,399,297

707,549
875,574
634,103
450.441

w-a1s00

Reference is made to the caption "Commitments and Contingencies" conceming comments related to

the Authority's Year 2002 Capital Improvement Program.

Litieation Settlement Related to the Capital Imnrovement Proeram

The Authority was a palry defendant in an action initiated in the New Jersey Superior Court, Chancery

Division, Union County, by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection. A public
interest environmental group was granted permission by the Court to intervene in the action of the
plaintiff. The plaintiffs alleged that the Authority violated several provisions of its New Jersey

Pollutant Discharge Elimination Systern (NJPDES) Permit over a period of time. The Authority
denied the allegations and asserted defenses to the plaintiffs' claims. While in trial, the parties agreed

on a settlement of all claims among the parties. A $965,000 provision for the litigation settlement was

included as a charge to operations in the year ended December 31, 2000. Pursuant to the terms of the

settlement agreement, the Authority paid $365,000 in the Year 2001 and the remainder of $600,000,

with interest, was paid in the Year 2002. The basic terms of the settlement included in a Judicial
Consent Order (JCO) entered by the Court in October, 2001 requiring the Authority to significantly
improve its treatment capabilities and the effluent quality. The requirements of the JCO were

incorporated into the Authority's Year 2002 Capital Improvement Progtam (CIP). The CIP included

the following segments: (i) Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) improvements; (ii) a new Gravity
Relief Sewer (GRS); and (iii) a Power Generating Sludge Drying Facility (Cogeneration Facility). The

CIP established a short, intermediate and long-term schedule for achieving permit compliance and

closing the Authority's combined sewer overflows. The requirements of the JCO have been satisfied.

11



Litisation and Related Matters

During the year 2009, litigation was commenced by the Authority in connection with the

Autho-rity's bogeneration Facility (the'Tacility"). The RVSA constructed the Facility on the

basis that op".itirg the Facility as the WWTP's primary power source would lower annual

operating costs by over $1 million per year. It was determined that operating the Facility as

dlsigped actually imposed increases in operating costs to the Authority. On March 24,2017

the RVSe frled a Demand for Arbihation asserting claims against various parties including the

design engineer, the construction oversight manager, the general contractor, the supplier of the

gas generators and other parties. A related action was commenced by the Authority on October

1, iOtZ against parties with whom the Authority did not have an arbitration requirement.

Settlements were realize d lrr.20l7 as to both arbitration and litigation.

The settlement aggregates approximately $7.1 million. In 2016, $850 thousand was received.

The remaining $62 million- is being paid under the terms of a Funding Agreement with

remaining payments as of December 31,2019 as follows:

Period Annual Amount Total Amount

$234,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900,000

$5Jr*000

lnterest income is being recorded on the funding agreement as payments are received-

2Ol9 to 2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

$3,042,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900,000

't2



Commitments and Continsencies

A. The Authority's Year 2002 Capital Improvement Program (CP), with a cost of approximately
$225 million is discussed in Note 16. A substantial portion (95'/") of such costs is related to the
Judicial Consent order (JCO).

The major sources of financing for the CIP were borrowings under the NJIB loan program and
the issuance of Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABS). Total bonowings outstanding under the
NIIB Trust/Fund Loan Program related to the CIP at December 31, 2019 were $74 million.
The NIIB borrowings outstanding at December 37,2019 mature in the Year 2035. The CABS,
with an issue value of $34.7 million and a maturity value of $112.9 million, will be paid over a
twelve-year period beginning in the Year 2024 and ending in the Year 2035.

Debt service payment requirements related to the year 2002 CIP will continue to be a
significant component of assessments to member municipalities through the Year 2035.
Annual debt service payment requirements will be in the $13 million range through the Year
2024, $12 million in the Year 2025 and in the $10 million range each year thereafter through
the Year 2035. A significant portion of the Authority's operating revenues are generated by
annual assessments to its member municipalities (96% for the year ended December 31,2019).

B. h January 2017, tbe Authority signed an agreement for a Public Private Partnership (PPP) to
accept specified feedstock (food waste) for co digestion with its bio solids and entered into a
contract with an initial term of 10 years with an optional renewal for 3 to l0 years. The
contract is a design/build construction contract which entails the refurbishing of an existing
sludge thickening tank that is being utilized as a feedstock receiving station. The project is
expected to generate energy savings, tip fees, and energy credits over the first l0 years
approximating $6 million which will be used to offset the cost of operating the Authority. The
project is expected to take 3 to 4 years to ramp up to maximum operations. Live operations
began in April 2018 with feedstock deliveries. The official contracted commercial operating
date began August 1, 2018 after full acceptance of the construction project and the appurtenant
equipment.

C. In conjunction with the aforementioned PPP project, in December 2017 the Authority issued a
$2.0 million Note with the NJIB that is due June 30,2021. The Note bears no interest. This
interim financing was secured for the construction of a Food Waste Station. In April2018 the
Note was increased to approximately $2.4 million. The Authority expects to permanently
finance the Note prior to maturity through the NJIB financing program. Permanent financing is
expected to consist of 75% of the bond to bear no interest while 25Yo to bear interest at then
current market rates. Each bond is expected to be amortized on a level debt service basis for a
period of not less than 20 years and not more than 30 years.

D. In December 2017 the Authority issued a$4.2 million Note with the NJEIT that is due June 30,
2021. The Note bears no interest. This interim financing was secured for improvements to the
Authority's Digesters and Gas Flares. The Authority expects to permanently finance the Note
prior to maturity through the NJIB financing program. Permanent financing is expected to
consist of 7 5Yo of the bond to bear no interest while 25Yo to bear interest at then current market
rates. Each bond is expected to be amortized on a level debt service basis for a period of not
less than 20 years and not more than 30 years.
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Contactins the Authoritv's Manasement

euestions conceming the Authority's annual financial report should be addressed to the Authority's

S-ecretary/Treasurer 
-ut tn" Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority, 1050 East Hazelwood Avenue,

Rahway, New Jersey 07065.
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ASSETS

Unrestricted Assets - Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Other Receivables

Total Unrestricted Assets - Current

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Project Funds Held bY ihe

New Jersey Environmental lnfrastructure Trust

Total Restricted Assels - Current

Unrestricted Assets - Long Term:
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost
Less: Accumulated DePreciation

Net Property, Plant and EquiPmeni

Other Receivable - Long Term

Total Unrestricted Assets - Lonq Term

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension Related
OPEB Related

Total Deferred Outflo,vs of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORIry

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31 , 2019 AND 2018

EXHIBIT A
SHEET #1

2019 2418

$ 3,352,788 $ 2,588,092
123,',124 126,487
142,844 178,300
287,506 111,950

$ 3,906,262 $ 3,004,829

$ 6,254,081 $ 5,862,191

915.701 1,940,033

$ 7,169,782 $ 7,802,224

$ 279,764,638 $ 277,731,991

100,917,362 91,979,427

$ 178.847.276 $ 185,752,564

3.958.361 4,073,576

$ 182.805.637 $ 189,826,140

$ 193,881,681 $ 200,633,193

I 2,351,700 $ 3,864,936
u1,625 1,',t71,291

$ 3,193,325 $ 5,036,227

$ _l-gzpzg,olt $ 205,669,420

The accompanying Notes to the Financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement.
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EXHIBIT A
SHEET #2

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities Payable From Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Pa)€ble and Accrued Expenses

Total Cunent Liabilities Pavable From Unrestricted Assets

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable
Retainage Due Contraclors
Accrued lnterest Payable
Current Portion of Long{erm Debt

Total Current Liabilities Pa\iable From Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Total Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities
NJIB lnterim Financing
Net Pension Liability
OPEB Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Credits on Debt Refundings
Pension Related
OPEB Relaied
Deferred Bond Premium

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Net Position:
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

$ 39,661,787 $ 39,621,533
9,561,520 8,878,232

(27,762,615\ (28,706,725)

$ 21,460,692 $ 19,793,040

$ __t-9z,o]!,09q_ $ _ 19!,6991?9_

2019

$ 1,360,956

$ 1,360,956

$ 967,717

627 ,824
1 1,682,206

$ 13,277,747

$ 119,500,016
6,567,507

10,783,169
10,174,860

$ 147,O2s,552

$ 161,664,255

2018

$ 1,732,239

$ 1,732,239

$ 434,241
s1 ,274

743,013
11 ,427 ,016

$ 12,655,544

$ 127,989,261
6,567,507

11 ,889,949
12,858,377

$ 159,305,094

$ 173,692,877

$ 1,616,874
4,066,414
8,216,464

50,307

$ 13,950,059

$ 1,974,481
3,990,168
6,165,098

53,756

$ 12,183,503

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019

$ 26,290,500
1,299,785

207 ,844
8,843

$ 27,806,972

$ 9,879,345
3,498,608

482,700
(498,030)

8,961,850

I 22,324,473

$ 5,482,499

EXHIBIT B

2018

$ 25,060,000
865,105

79,083
13,027

$ 26,017,215

$ 9,314,104
3,588,528

2A9,111
198,046

8,762,529

$ 22,',t32,318

$ 3,884,897

$ 147,097
48,388

5,787

(4,443,253\

s (3s7,084)

$ 20,150,124

$ 19,793,040

Operating Revenues:
Member Annual Assessments
Discharge, Permit and Other Fees

Food Waste Fees
Other lncome, Net

Total Ooeratinq Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Costs of Providing Services
General and Administrative
Pension Expense Charge
OPEB Expense Adiustment
Depreciation

Total Ooeratino Exoenses

Ooeratino lncome

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
lnterest lncome - Unrestricted Funds

lnterest lncome - Restricted Funds
Grant lncomelloan Forgiveness
G rants
lnterest Expense, Net

Net lncome (Loss)

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

$ 63,658
182,838

225,000
(4,286,343)

$ 1,667,652

I 19,793,040

$ 21.460,692

The accompanying Notes to the Financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RAIIWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

EXHIBIT C

2019 2018

$ 26,290,500 $ 25,060,000
'1,286,860 79o,252
224,132 40,757

8,843 13,027
(8,609,515) (7,141,950)
(s,081,014) (5,522,339)

$ 14,119,806 $ 13,239,747

Cash Flows from Ooeratino Activitiesl
Receipts from Member Annual Assessments
Receipts for Discharge, Permit and Other Fees
Receipts for Food Waste Fees
Other Receipts
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided by Operatino Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financino Activitie6:
Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
lnteresl Paid on Bonds
Proceeds from the NJ lnlrastructure Bank Loan Program
Capital Litigation Settlements (Principal and lnterest)
Grants

Net Cash Used in Caoital and Financino Activities

Cash Flows from lnvestino Activities:
lnterest Received

Net Cash Provided bv lnvestino Activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating lncome lo Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating lncome
Depreciation
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Other

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ (13,087,666) $ (12,926,160)

$ 124.446 $ U,774

$ 124,446 $ 64,774

$ (1,574,355)
(11,427,016)

(1,569,627)
1,024,332

2U,OOO
225,000

$ 1,156,586

8,450,283

$ ______9,6q9,8q9_

$ 5,482,499
8,961,850

(14'1,761)
35,456

(202,908)
(15,330)

$ _____llJt!.999_

$ (4,799,601)
(11,496,520)
(1,s21,970)
4,657,931

234,000

$ 378,361

8,071,922

$ ___qlggt!g_

$ 3,884,897
8,762,529

(113,179)
1,200

237,143
467,157

$ ____J3 23s-J.47_

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31.2019 AND 2018

GENERAL

The Rahway valley sewerage Aulhority (Authority) was created for the construction,

operation and maintenance of a joint trunk sewel and wastewater treatment plant to

serve municipalities in the Rahway Valley region. The Authority has a service

agreement with its member municipalities which obligates each municipality to pay a
s[are of the Authority's operating and capital expenditures, bond service and required

reserve additions not met by other sources. Assessments to member municipalities are

made in proportion to the tontribution of each municipality's percentage share of the

total average daily flow, suspended solids and biochemical oxygen demand from the

municipalit/ based on a forward moving average ofthe data for a five-year period. The

Board of commissioners is composed of eleven members, one each for the constituent

municipalities.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with us.
generally accepted accounting principles (GMP) as_applied to governmental units. The

6overnmentat 
'Rccounting 

StandarOs Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting

body for establishing gov;rnmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The

most significant of the accounting policies are described below'

Cash Eouivalenis

cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market. The Authority considers

investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents'

lnventorv

lnventoryofsparepartsandSuppliesisrecordedasanexpensewhenpurchasedand
accordingly, is not included in the statements of net assets.

Vacation and Sick Leave

Authority employees are granted vacation in varying amounts and earn certain sick

leave time. in ihe event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated

vacation days and certain employees are eligible for the reimbursement of accumulated

sick leave on a percentage baiis. Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave is

accrued when incurred.

(2)
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(2)

MHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reportino Entitv

The Authority's linancial statements include the operations of the joint trunk sewer and
wastewater treatment plant for which the Board of Commissioners of the Authority
exercises financial accountability. The Authority is considered a joint venture of the
participating governments. Board members are appointed to five-year terms by their
respective municipalities. There are no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity and the Authority is not included in any other reporting entity.

Basis of Accountino

The financial statements ofthe Authority have been prepared on the accrual basis and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to enterprise funds
of state and local governments. An Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations:
(i) that are flnanced primarily through user charges, or (ii) where the governing body has
decided that determination of net income is appropriate.

The accounting and financial reporting applied by the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The financial stalements are reported using the economic
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The transactions of the
Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Wth
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations are
included in the Statements of Net Position. Net Position (totals assets and deferred
outflows net of total liabilities and deferred inflows) are segregated into invested in
capital assets, restricted and unrestricted components.

Accountino and Financial Reportino for Pensions

The Authority implemented GASB 68 in the Year 2015. This Statement amends GASB
Statement No. 27. tt improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. lt also improves information provided by state and local
government employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other
entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to
providing decision useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the
requirement of Slatement No. 27, Accounting for Pension by State and Local
Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension
Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans
administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The
requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not
covered by the scope of this Statement. This statement is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2015.



MHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31.2019 AND 2018

(2)

The Authority has also implemented GASB Statement 71 , Pension Transition for

contributiongmadesubsequenttotheMeasurementDale-anamendmenttoGASBNo.
Ori 

-in" 
oUl"tire of this Siatement is to address an issue regarding application of the

irlnsition 
-piovisions 

of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for

Fensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, madeby a

stateorlocalgovernmentemployerornonemployel.contributingentity.toadefined
u.."tii p"""io,i plin after the' measurement date of the government's beginning net

pension liability.

statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemploy-er

."^iiioriiis Lntitv in a speciat funding situaiion) to reco.gnize a net pension liatility

measured 
-as 

ot i date (the measurem6nt date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal

,"rr. tt a state or local qovernment employer or nonemployer contributing entity makes

I *.tiiUrti* i" , OLiin""O benefit pension plan between the measurement date of the

Liirt"J 
-""t 

pension liability 
"nd 

th" end of the government's reporting period,

Stl[r"nt 6g requires that the government recognize its contribution as a deferred

outflow of resources.

lnaddition,statement6srequiresrecognitionofdeferredoutflowsofresourcesand
defened inflows of resources ior changei in the net pension liability of a state.or local

governmentemployerornonemployer-contribr'rtingentitythatarisefromothertypesof
events.

Accountinq and Financial Reoortino
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED'}

Accountino and Financial Reportino for Pensions (Continued)

This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a
government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension
contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net
pension liability. Statement 68, as amended, conlinues to require that beginning
balances for other defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine all such
amounts.

Under GAAP, Authorities are required to recognize the pension liability in the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, Changes in Net Assets (balance sheets) and Notes to the
Financial Statements in accordance with GASB 68. The liability required to be displayed
by GASB 68 is displayed as a separate line item in the Unrestricted Net Liabilities area
of the balance sheet.

Accountinq and Financial Reportino for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(OPEB)

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement no. 75,
"Accounting and Financial Repofting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Penslons". This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing
liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and expenses for postemployment
benefits other than pensions. lt also requires the State of New Jersey to calculate and
allocate to each participating member, for note disclosure purposes only, the OPEB net
liability of New Jersey Health Benefits Local Governmenl Retiree Plan (the Plan). The
statement does not alter the amount of funds that must be budgeted for OPEB payment
under existing state law.

Under GMP, Authorities are required to recognize the OPEB liability in the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, Changes in Net Position (balance sheets) and Notes to the
Financial Statements in accordance with GASB 75. The liability required to be displayed
by GASB 75 is displayed as a separate line item in the Unrestricted Net Liabilities area
of the balance sheet.
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate

section for deferred outflows of resources. This Separate financial statement element,

defened outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to

a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources

(expense/expenditure) until then. cunently, the Authority has two items that qualify for

ieporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions and oPEB'

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of flnancial position will sometimes report a

separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This Separate financial statement

element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that

applies io a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources

(levenue) until that time. The Authority has four items that qualify in this category:

credits on debt refundings, defened amounts related to pension, deferred amounts that

relate to OPEB, and deferred bond premium.

Restricted Assets

ln accordance with the Bond Resolution related to certain debt obligations of the

Ruthority(SeenoteS),theAuthorityestablishedaConstructionFundinwhichmaybe
Oeposit6Oine proceeds of Bonds oiNotes issued to finance the costs of capital projects.

The Authority'shall apply the amounts on deposit in the construction Fund for the

p"yr"ni ot 
"b.t" 

retated io its capital asset plant facilities. The Authority may also apply

[nJ O"tanc" on deposit in the ionstruction Fund for the payment of the principal or

redemption price of or interest on its Bonds, as defined'
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ln addition to the Construction Fund, the Authority established the following Special
funds:

FUND

Revenue

Operating

Operating Reserve

Debt Service

Debt Service
Reserve

Subordinated
Payment Obligations

Capital Replacement

AMOUNT

Revenues received by the Authodty from
municipality service charges

Amount required to equal the Operating
Fund Requirement - The Operating Fund
Requirement is defined as the amount of
money which is equal to the amount
necessary for the payment of operating
expenses for the current fiscal year (in
accordance with the provisions of the
Annual Budget which is in effect at the
date of determination) and any additional
operating expenses provided for in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Amount of money which is equal to 25%
of the operating expenses estimated by
the Authority for the next fiscal year

Amount needed to equal the Debt
Service Requirement (as defined in the
bond resolution)

Amount needed to increase the balance
to equal the Debt ReseNe Requirement
(as defined in the bond resolution)

Amount needed to pay Subordinated
Payment Obligations payable during the
twelve-month period beginning on the
first calendar day of such month

Amount provided in the Annual Budget
and designations

USE FOR WHICH
RESTRICTED

Authorized operating
expenses and transfers
to the various accounts
described below

Operating expenses

Operating expenses

Debt obligations

Compliance with a
Supplemental Resolution
or Series Certificate, if
any

Subordinated Payment
Obligations, if any

Capital asset costs
associated with the
System (as defned in the
bond resolution)
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FUND AMOUNT
USE FOR WHICH

RESTRICTED

Rebate Amount subject to rebate to the United Amounts due to the United

States Government pursuant to the States Government
provisions of the lnternal Revenue
Code

General To the extent that any funds are None
available

The Debt service Fund, Debt service Reserve Fund, and the subordinated Payment

obligations Fund shall be held by the Trustee; all other Funds shall be held by the

Authority.

ln addition to the foregoing, the Authority established the Building and Equipment Fund

to disburse funds for iapilal expenditures. This fund is under the direct control of the

Authority subject to restrictions required under debt obligation agreements'

CaDitalized lnterest

Major ouflays for capital assels and improvements are capitalized as projects are

constructed. lnterest incurred during the construction phase of major capital assets that

have a construc.tion period of over one year is reflected in the capitalized value of the

asset constructed.

lncome Taxes

No provision for income taxes has been made as the Authority is exempt from Federal

and State income taxes.

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally 99c9p19d
accounting principlei requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported ;mounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

lia'bilities at the date of the financial statements and lhe reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.



RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

E\ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

1) lnvested in Capital Assets - consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2) Restricted - when constraints placed on net position are either a) externally
imposed by creditors (such as the bond resolution), grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law.

3) Unrestricted - any other net position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted" or 'invested in capital assets.'

ProDertv. Planl and Eouioment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost which includes construction costs and
other expenditures related to construction. Depreciation is determined on a straight-line
basis, for all plant and equipment. Depreciation is provided for over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and lmprovements 20-40 years
Sewer Mains 30 years
Other lmprovements 10-20 years
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years
Vehicles 5 years
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Prooertv. Plant and Eouioment (continued)

Details of property, plant and equipment as of December 31' 2019 and 2018 are as

follows:

Land
Buildings and lmprovements
Sewer Mains
Other lmprovements
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Construction in Progress

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property, Plant and EquiPment

2019

$ 454,919
160,821,158

17,752,867
39,190,781
56,585,597

372,830
4,586.486

279,764,638

100.9'17.362

$113..847275

2018

$ 454,919
160,665,604

17,691 ,080
38,931,788
55,974,489

396,745
3,617.366

277 ,731,991

91.979.427

$185J52t64

(3) BUDGETARY PROCEDURES

The Authority follows these procedures in establishing the Operating Fund budget:

The annual budget for each fiscal year of the Authority is introduced by resolution

passed by not leis than a majority ofthe governing body. Copies are submitted to the

birector of the Division of Local Government Services Director (Directo4 for approval

prior to its adoption.

The budget must comply with the terms and provisions of loan agreements and is to be

in such f6rm and detail is to items of revenue, expenses and other contents as required

by law or by rules and regulations ofthe Local Finance Board.

No authority budget can be finally adopted until the Dlrector has approved the budget'

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments on the proposed budget

operating expense appropriations lapse at the close of the fiscal year to the extent that
they have not been expended.

The level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budget is at the total budget level.

The budget may be increased after adoption when an item of revenue has been made

available after the adoption date.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The components of cash and cash equivalents are summarized as follows:

December 31 , 20'19:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31 , 2018:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted Restricted

$3352J88 $62!{.081

$2.588J92 $5i62;191

(5)

Cash on deposit is partially insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation in the
amount of $250,000 in each bank depository. Balances above the federal depository
insurance amount are insured by the State of New Jersey Governmenlal Unit Deposit
Protection Act (NJGUDPA).

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the deposits may not be returned. The Authority does not have a specific deposit policy
for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere to the requirements of
statute. As of December 31, 2019, based upon the coverage provided by FDIC and
NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk.

INVESTMENTS

The Authority's investment policy principally permits the investing of funds in the
following types of investments:

Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued by any
agency or instrumentality ofthe United States or by any corporation chartered by
the United States to the extent that such obligations are guaranteed by the
United States or by another such agency and Defeasance Securities.

Negotiable or nonnegotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank, trust
company, or national banking associations which certificates of deposits shall be
continuously secured by obligations described in the first paragraph above.

Deposits in the NJ Cash Management Fund and other deposits defined in the
Authority's Bond Resolution.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

OTHER RECEIVABLE

Under a confidential Agreement of settlement and General Release, the Authority

setfled a dispute with one of the parties in connection with the Authority's cogeneration

Facility. The agreement provides for a settlement of $4.4 million. The settlement

amornt *"" funied under a Funding Agreement and will be paid periodicaly over a

period of twenty (20) years. Total payments to be received over the hventy-year period

amounts to $6,225,000.

ln 2016, the Authority recorded a receivable in the amount of $4,400,000 reflecting the

litigation settlement amount. lnterest on the settlement payments are recorded-as
pa-yments are received. ln 2019 and 2018, the Authority received payments of $234,000

in Lach year in accordance with the funding schedule. This payment included interest

that was realized in the amount of $122,050 and $125,222 in the years ended December

31,2019 and 2018, respectively. The receivable balance ofthe settlement agreement at

present value at December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounts to $4,073,576 and $4,185'526,

respectively.

The total remaining payments to be received are scheduled as follows:

Period Annual Amount Total Amount

20201o2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

$234,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900,000

$2,808,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900.000

$5-523JOO
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment is summarized as follows:

Balance
Dec 31.2018

Land $ 454,919
Buildingsandlmprovements 160,665,604
Sewer Mains 17,691,080
Other lmprovements 38,931,788
Machinery and Equipment 55,974,489
Vehicles 396,745
Construction in Progress 3.617.366

$277 ,731,991

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Property, Plant and
Equipment

91.979.427

$185J525M

lncrease

$ 39,934

165,397
568,016

1.283.215
$ 2,056,562

8.961.850

$Gp05.288)

Transfers/
(Decreases)

$ 115,620
61,787
93,596
43,092

(23,9'15)
(314.095)

$ (23,915)

(23.915)

$------G

Balance
Dec 31. 20'19

$ 454,919
160,821,158
17,752,867
39,190,781
56,585,597

372,830
4.586.486

279,764,638

100.917.362

$fi.a47275
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

DEBT OBLIGATIONS

2019

A summary of long-term debt follows:

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2002 Obligations,
due August 2022

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2003 Obligations,
due August 2023

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2004 Obligations'
due August 2024

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2004 Obligations,
due August 2024

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2005 Obligations,
due August 2025

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank 2015 A & B
Obligations, due August 2034

Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2005 (CaPital

Appreciation Bonds), due September 2035

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank - lnterim
Construction Financing - 2017 ; Digester
Covers and Gas Flares, due June 2021

New Jersey lnfrastructure Bank - lnterim
Construction Financing - 2017; Food
Waste Station, due June 2021

Total Debt

Less Current Maturities

Total Long-Term Debt

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

$11,682,206
1 1,951,499
12,252,156
12,085,677
11,428,788

31

2,356,560 2,356,560

$137,749,729 $145,983,784

11,682,206 11,951 ,499

$ 1,020,022

6,255,980

36,952,795

1,082,137

15,715,907

1,414,447

68,740,934

4,210,947

2018

$ 1,348,474

7,784,286

43,821,547

1,284,513

18,129,54

1,499,941

65,547,972

4,210,947

$126,067,523 $134,556,768

Aggregate long-term principaldebt payment requirements over the next five years are as

follows:
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31.2019 AND 2018

DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTI NUED)

Detail information regarding Debt Obligations at December 31, 2019 and 2018 follows:

New Jersev lnfrastructure Bank (NJIB)

Total obligations payable to the NJIB at December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to
$69.0 million and $80.4 million, respectively. A summary of the NJIB obligations follow:

ln November 2002, the Authority issued $5.5 million NJIB Series 2002
obligations due on August 1, 2022. These obligations represent the initial portion
of the permanent financing to fund the construction costs related to certain plant
upgrades. "Principal balance refunding credits" have been realized on this debt.
Refunding credits amounting to $84,916 have been recorded as a Credit on Debt
Refunding and is being amortized over the remaining term of the loan as a credit
to interest expense. Annual remaining principal and interest payments under
these refunded obligations will average approximately $360 thousand through
the year 2022. Ihe annual interest rate on the outstanding principal amount of
$585,549 of such obligations approximates 3% over the remaining term. No
interest is due on the remaining principal amount of $434,473.

ln November 2003, the Authority issued $25.1 million NJIB Series 2003
obligations due in August 2023. These obligations represent the permanent
financing to fund the construction costs related to the Cogeneration Facility, a
segment of the Authority's Capital lmprovement Program (ClP) and the
remainder of certain other plant upgrades. "Principal balance refunding credits"
have been realized on this debt. Refunding credits amounting to $310,000 have
been recorded as a Credit on Debt Refunding and are being amortized over the
remaining term of the loan as a credit to interest expense. Annual remaining
principal and interest payments under these obligations will average
approximately $1.7 million through the year 2023. The annual interest rate on
the outstanding principal amount of $3,620,000 of such obligations approximates
3.0% over the remaining term. No interest is due on the remaining principal
amount of $2,635,981.

B.
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 , 2019 AND 2018

DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

New Jersev lnfrastructure Bank (NJIB) (Continued)

C. ln November 2004, the Authority issued $114.2 million NJIB Series 2004

obligations due in August 2024. These obligations represent a portion of the
permanent financing to fund the construction costs related to the wastewater

ireatment plant improvements that are part of the ClP. "Principal balance

refunding credits" have been realized on this debt. Refunding credits amounting

to $3,0%,333 have been recorded as a Credit on Debt Refunding and is being

amortized over the remaining term of the loan as a credit to interest expense'

Annual remaining principal and interest payments under these refunded

obligations will average approximately $8.1 million through the yeat 2024 ' fhe
annual interest rate on the outstanding principal amount of $20,647,677 of such

obligations approximates 3.0% over the remaining term No inlerest is due on

the remaining principal amount of $16'305,117.

D. ln November 2004, the Authority issued $3.5 million NJIB Series 2004

obligationsdueinAugust2024.Theseobligationsrepresentadditional
periranent financing to iund the construction costs related to the Cogeneration

Facility and certain plant upgrades. "Principal balance refunding credits'have
been iealized on this debt. Refunding credits amounting to $99,853 have been

recorded as a Credit on Debt Refunding and is being amortized over the

remaining term of the loan as a credit to interest expense. Annual principal and

interest 
-payments 

under these obligations will average approximately $239
thousand.throughtheyear2024.Theannualinterestrateontheoutstanding
principal amou;t of $606,299 of such obligations approximates 3'1% over the-

iemaining term. No interest is due on the remaining principal amount of

$475,838.

E. ln November, 2005, the Authority issued $4'1.2 million NJIB Series 2005

obligationsdueinAugust2o2S'Theseobligationsrepresentadditional
periranent financing to fund the construction costs related principally to the

wastewater treatment plant and gravity relief sewer segments of the CIP'
,,Principal balance refunding credits" have been realized on this debt. Refunding

credits amounting to $1,234,954 have been recorded as a Credit on Debt

Refunding and isleing amortized over the remaining term of the loan as a credit

to interelt expense. Annual principal and interest payments under these

obligations will average approximately $2.9 million through the year 2025' The
annual interest rate on the outstanding principal amount of $9,399,223
approximates 2.9o/o ovet the remaining term. No interest is due on the remaining
principal amount of $6,3'16,684.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

New Jersev lnfrastructure Bank (NJIB) (Continued)

F. ln May 2015, the Authority issued $1.7 million NJIB Series 2015A-l obligations
due in August 2034. These obligations represent funding for upgrades to the
Digester Gas Treatmenl System and Chemical Feed System. Annual principal

and interest payments under these obligatlons will average approximately $110
thousand through the year 2034. The annual interest rate on the outstanding
principal amount of $455,000 of such obligations approximates 4.5% over the
remaining term. No interest is due on the remaining principal amount of
$959,448.

As part of this financing, the Authority was granted $399,980 of loan forgiveness
which is being treated as grant income on the financial statements. The
Authority recorded $5,787 of this loan forgiveness as grant income in the year
20'19. Thefull amount of the forgiveness has been received.

G. ln December 2017, Ior purposes of temporary/interim financing during
construction, the Authority issued non-interest-bearing Notes to the NJIB in the
amounts of $4,210,947 and $2,356,560 which are due on June 30, 2021 . These
Notes represenl funding for improvements to the Authority's Digester Covers and
Gas Flares and the construction of a Food Waste Station, respectively.
Proceeds of the Notes are held by the NJIB for the benefit of the Authority upon
submission of approved construction cost requisitions. The Authority expects to
permanently finance lhese Notes prior to maturity through the NJIB financing
program. At the time of such permanent financing, the Authority expects to
deliver a non-interest-bearing bond to the NJIB for approximately 75% of the
financing and bonds at the then current market rates for approximately 25% of
the financing. Each bond is expected to be amortized on a level debl service
basis for a period of not less than twenty years and not more than thirty years.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Sewer Revenue Bonds. 2005 - CaDital ADoreciation Bonds

ln July 2005, the Authority issued sewer Revenue Bonds (capital Appreciation Bonds)

Serlei 2005 obligations due in lhe year 2035. These obligations have an issue value of
g34.7 million and a maturity value of $112.9 million. These bonds will be paid over a

twelve-year period beginning in the year 2024 and ending in september 2035. These

obligations represent iaUitionat permanent financing to fund the remaining cost of the
ye; 2OO2 Capital lmprovement Program. Annual principal and interest payments under

these obtigalions will be $1.7 million in the yeat 2024, $9.0 million in the year 2025, and

approxim;tely $10.2 million in each year thereafter through the year 2035 Annual

interest rates on these obligations range betvveen 4.68% and 4 88%.

lnterest on the capital Appreciation Bonds is accreted in accordance with an Accreted

Value Table. The accreied value of the Capital Appreciation Bonds outstanding at

December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $68,740,934 and $65,547,973, respectively

These amounts include $34,068,363 and $30,875,402 of accreted interest at December

31 , 2019 and 2018, respectively.

CREDITS ON DEBT REFUNDINGS

The credits on Debt Refundings relate to "principal balance refunding credits" realized

on NJIB debt obligations. ihe total savings in principal payments amounted to

V,757 ,52g. The Credits on Debt Refundings are being amortized through the year

iO|s o 
^ 

straighfline basis. Amortization of $357,607 was recorded in the each of the

v""o zore ano"zotg, which reduced interest expense. The unamortized balance ofthe

bredits on Debt Refundings amounted to $1,616,874 and $1,974,481 at December 31'

2O1g and 2018, respectiiety. The Credits on Debt Refundings ale presente! in the

Statements of Net position ai December 31, 2019 and 2018 under the caption "Deferred

lnflows of Resources".

(e)
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DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

NET POSITION

The components of net position are as follows:

Net Position:
lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Liabilities

Restricted:
Building and EquiPment Fund
Capital Replacement Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Debl Service Fund
Total Restricted

Unrestricted:
Appropriated Budget
Unappropriated
Rate Stabilization Fund
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB LiabilitY
Total Unrestricted

Total Net Position

December 31.
20'19 2018

$39,661,787 $39,621,533

4,218J00 4,185,526
977,244 391,244

3,355,000 3,202,500
1.010.576 1.098.962

$ 9.561.520 $ 8.878.232

$ 750,000 $ 348,000
1,334,967 908,185
200,000 100,000

(12,4s7,883) (12,015,181)
(17.549.699) (18.U7.729\

$(27.762.615) $(28.390.725)

$2rr$0-692 $19J93-o10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

(11) PENSION PLAN

All required full-time employees of the Authority are covered by the Public Employees'
Retirement System which has been established by state statute and is administered by

the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits (Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of the System will be assumed by the
State of New Jersey should the System terminate. The Division issues a publicly

available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the system. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or online at
www.state.ni.ustreasurv/oensions.

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1,

1955 under the provision of N.J.S.A.43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and
medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retiremenl
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county'
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to
be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local
jurisdiction.

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the
provision of Chapter 92, P.L.2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to
elected and certain appointed officials and part{ime employees' effective July 1,2007.
Part-time employees that earn an annual salary of at least $5,000 and work less than 35

hours per week are eligible to enroll in the New Jersey Defined contribution Plan
(DCRp). The DCRP is offered through the Prudential Retirement lnsurance and Annuity
bompany. Employees contribute 5.5% of salary and the Authority contributes 3% of
salary, t6r a total Contribution of 8.5%. Membership is mandatory for such individuals
with vesting occurring after one year of membership. The Authority has no employees
enrolled in the DCRP.

Sionifi cant Leqislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L.2O'11, c.78 enacted certain changes in the operations and

benefit provisions of the PERS system.

Pension Plan Desion Chanoes

EffectiveJune28,2011,P.L.2O1l,c.78,newmembersofPERS,hiredonor
after June 28,2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have attained the age

of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction ot 114 ol 1% for each

month that the member is under age 65. New members will be eligible for a service

retirement benefit at age 65.
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(11) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Fundino Chanqes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued liability

paymentportionoftheemployer'sannualpensioncontributiontothePERSwas
inangea. The unfunded aciuaiial accrued liability (UAAL) will be amortized for each
plan-overanopen.ended3o.yearperiodandpgrlllleveldo|lars.Beginningwiththe
July 1, 2019 aciuarial valuation (July 1, 2019 for PFRS), the U6,qL will be amortized o\/er

a closed 3o-year period until the remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization

period will revert to an open-ended zo-year period.

COLA Susoension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment Jo gYrrgnt and future retirees and

beneiiciaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vestino and Benelit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43 38 All

benefits veist after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits

that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the conlributions. ln

the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest

credited to the members' accounts.

Contribution Reouirements

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active

members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be

amended by State of New Jersey legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011 , P.L. 201'1, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee

conlribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 'l% phased-in over 7 years

beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's effective date for
PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate for PERS. The

actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments,
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 . 2O.I9 AND 2018

(11) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements:

Three Year Trend lnformation for PERS

Annual
Year Ended Pension

June 30 Cost (APC)

Percentage of
APC

Contributed

100o/o

100%
lOOo/o

2019
2018
2017

$600,658
532,442
486,035

Net Pension
Oblioation

$600,658
532,M2
486,035

DCRP Contributions

The Authority did not make DoRP contributions for the years ended December 31 , 2019

and 2018.

(12) ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Emolovees Retirement Svstem (PERS)

At December 31, 2019, the Authority reported a net pension liability of $'10,783,169 for

its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The total pension llability was

measuied as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net

pension liability was determined by an acluarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was

iolled forward'to June 30, 2019. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability

was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the

pension plan relitiva to the projected contributions of all participating employers,

iAuariatry determined. At June 30, 2019, the Authority's proportion was 0.0598450444
percent, which was a decrease of 0.0005422056 percent from its proportion measured

as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the state recognized an actuarially delermined
pension ;xpense of $755,219 for the Authority's proportionate share of the total pension

expense. ihe pension expense recognized in the Authority's financial statement based

on the April 1, 20'19 billing was $600,658.

39



(12)

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERS) (Continued)

At December 31, 2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and

defened inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between expected and actual
experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between
Aulhoiity contributions and proportionate share of
contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date

Deferred Deferred
lnflow of Outflow of

Resources Resources

$3,742,804 $1,076,739

'193,s44

105,758 790,3s9

-0- 291.058
$4-066Jr4 $215rJ00

47,635

170,217

other amounts reported by the state as the Authority's proportionate share of deferred
outflows of resources ani deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in the State's actuarially calculated pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount

2020 $(174,448)
2021 (873,154)

2022 (765,019)

2023 (286,585)
2024 93.434

$12-oo5J1A

(CONTINUED)
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DECEMBER 31 . 2019 AND 2018

Actuarial Assumotions

ThetotalpensionliabilityfortheJune30,2olgmeasuremenldateWaSdeterminedby

"n ".ir"r[i 
rrrration as of July 1, 2018, which rolled forward to June 30, 2019. These

actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

lnflation

lnvestment Rate of Return

6/30/2019

2.75 Percent

7.00 Percent

6/30/2018

2.25 Percent

1.65-4.15 Percent
2.65-5.15 Percent

7.00 Percent

Salary lncreases (based on age):
Through 2026 2.00-6.00 Percent

Thereifter 3.00-7 00 Percent

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median

income emproy"e mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101'4o/o

;;j;;i;""l i"; ?"males, and with future improvement from the base year of 201o on.a

g"'n";;n"i lr"i". Post-retirement mortality rates were. based on the Pub-2010

6eneral Below_Median lncome Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4o/o adjustment

foi r"6" and 99.7o/o adjustment for females, and with future improvement from tL" qltq
vear of 2010 on a qeneiational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled

;#;";;;; u"*i "" tn" pub-2010 Non-safety Disabted Retiree mortatity tabte with a

r zzi;2" 
"Jiu.ir"nt 

for males and 117.2o/o adjustment for femates, and with future

irprorem"it tro, the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement

is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results

oi an 
""iu"tiaf 

e*p"ti"nc. study for the peiiod July 1 ,2014 lo June 30' 2018'

(CONTINUED)

Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERS) (Continued
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(12) ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Emolovees Retirement Svstem (PERS) (Continued)

Lono-Term Rate of Return

ln accordance with State statute, the long{erm expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018) is determined by the
State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of lnvestment and
Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan inveslment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return
for each major asset class included in PERS'S target asset allocation as of June 30,
2019 are summarized in the following table:

June 30. 2019
Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Allocation Rate of ReturnAsset Class

Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00%
Cash Equivalents 5.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5-00%
lnvestment Grade Credit 10.00%
High Yield 2.O0o/o

Private Credit 6.00%
Real Assets 2.50%
Real Estate 7.50%
U.S. Equity 28.00%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50o/o

Emerging Market Equity 6.50%
Private Equity 12.00%

4.67%
2.OO%

2.680/o

4.25o/o

5.37o/o

7.92Vo

9.31%
8.33o/o

8.26%
9.00%
11.37o/o
'10.85%

100.00%
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(12) ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% and 5.66% as of

June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively. These single blended discount rates

were based on the long{erm expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.OOYo for both June 30 2019 and June 30, 2018 and a municipal bond rate of 3.50%

and 3.870/o for June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 respectively based on the Bond Buyer

Go 2o-Bond Municipal Bond lndex, which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AAJAa or higher. The projection of cash flows

used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will

be made at the cunent member contribution rates and that contributions from employers
will be based on 70% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer

and 1OO% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers.

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be

available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through

2057. Therefore, the long{erm expected rate of return on plan investments was applied

to projected benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

sensitivitv of the collective Net Pension Liabilitv to chanoes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability of

the participating employers as of June 30, 2019 respectively, calculated using the

discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the Authority's proportionate share of

the net pension liability would be if it was calcutated using a discount rate that is 1-

percentage point lower or 1- percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30,20'19
1o/o At Current 1o/o

Decrease Discount Rate lncrease
5.280/o 6-?3% 7 -28o/o

Authority's proportionate share of
the pension liability $13,71 5,651 $10,783,169 $8,450,364
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112\ ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey Division
of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295
htto://wvw. state. n i. us/treasu rv/pensions.

(13) ACCOUNTING AND FIMNCIAL REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No.75,
'Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions". This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing
liabilities, defened outflo /s and inflows of resources, and expenses for postemployment
benefits other than pensions. OPEB obligations are non-pension benefits that the
Authority has contractually or otherwise agreed to provide employees once they have
retired and, in most instances, will be for retirement health, prescription and dental
insurance coverage.

Under current New Jersey budget and financial reporting requirements, the Authority is

not required to fund any amounts in excess of their current costs on a pay-as-you-go
basis or to accrue funds, create a trust or issue debt to finance their other pos!
employment benefit liability.

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Government Retired Employees Plan (the Plan) is a cost-
sharing muhiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan
with a special funding situation. lt covers employees of local government employers that
have adopted a resolution to participate in the Plan. The Plan meets the definition of an
equivalent arrangement as defined in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,

Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions; therefore, assets are accumulated to pay associated benefits.
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(13) ACCOUNTING AND FIMNCIAL REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

The Plan provides medical and prescription drug coverage to retirees and their covered
dependents of the employers. Under the provisions of Chapter 88, P.L 1974 and

Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, local government employers electing to provide postretirement

medical coverage to their employees must file a resolution with the Division. Under

Chapter 88, local employers elect to provide benefit coverage based on the eligibility
rules and regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter
48 allows local employers to establish their own age and service eligibility for employer-
paid health benefits coverage for retired employees.

Under Chapter 48, the employer may assume the cost of postretirement medical
coverage for employees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a disability pension; or

2) retired with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally administered
retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time
of retirement as established by the employer; or 3) retired and reached the age of 65

with 25 or more years of service credtt in a State or locally administered retirement
system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of
retirement as established by the employer; or 4) retired and reached age 62 with at least
15 years of service with the employer. Further, the law provides that the employer-paid
obligations for retlree coverage may be determined by means of a collective

negotiations' agreement.

Contributions

The Authority's contributions to SHBP for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018

and 2017 were $318,895, $383,645, and $355,430, respectively, which equaled the
required contributions for each year.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 20'l|1, fulure retirees eligible for postretirement medical

coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be

required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement
provided they ietire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of

ihe premium for which the retlree will be responsible will be determined based on the
retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.
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(13) ACCOUNTTNG ANp FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
OTHER THAN PENSIONS _ GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Total OPEB Liabilitv

At June 30, 2019, the Plan reported a liability of $10,174,860 for the Authority's
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability. The total Net OPEB liability
measured as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,

2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019.

The Authority's proportion of the OPEB liability was based on the ratio of the plan

members of the individual employer to the total members of the Plan's nonspecial
funding situation during the measurement period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

At June 30,2019, the Authority's proportion was 0.075113 percent, which was a

decrease of 0.0006962 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority reported OPEB benefit of $204,886.
This OPEB benefit was based on the OPEB plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

At June 30, 2019, the Authority reported defened outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of lnflow of
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions $3,605,744

Net difference between expected and
actualexperience 2,975,526

Net difference between projected and
actualearnings on OPEB investments $ 8,38'1

Changes in proportion and differences
between Authority contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 833,244 1,635,194

Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date -0- -0-

$&11-625 $e.210.4e1

46



RAHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31.2019 AND 2018

(13) ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

The $841,625 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to oPEB result from

the Authority,s contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the year
ending June 30, 2019, the plan measurement date is June 30, 2018) and will be

recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended June 30' 2019.

other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount

2O2O $ (1,230,902)

2021 (1,230,902)
2022 (1,231,559)

2023 (,232,621)
ZO24 (1,233,591)

Thereafier 1.215.264\

$(7374.8i19)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other lnputs

The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan

the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial

assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

6t3012019 6130t2018

lnflation 2.50 Percent 2.50 Percent

Salary lncreases:
Through 2026
Thereafter

2.00-6.00Percent 1.65-8.98Percent
3.00-7.00Percent 2.65-9.98Percent
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(13) ACCOUNTING AND FIMNCIAL REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumotions and Other lnouts (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2018 valuation were based on the results of
the pension plans' experience studies prepared for July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2018 and
July '1, 2014 to June 30, 2018, respectively.

100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement.

Health Care Trend Assumotions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend is initially 5.7o/o and decreases lo a 4.5o/o

long{erm trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully
insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2020 are reflected. The assumed
post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the
initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a 4.5% longterm trend rate after eight years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 3.50% and 3.87%, respectively. This
represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the State. The source is the
Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond lndex, which includes lax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of A JAa or higher. As the long{erm
rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation
of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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(13)

Discount Rate

The following presents the oPEB liability associated with the Authority as of June 3O

2019, calculit6d using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the OPEB

liabiliiy would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point

lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Authority's proportionate share of
the OPEB liability

June 30,.?Q19=---
At Current 1o/o

Discount Rate lncrease
3.s0% 4.50%

$10,174,860 $8,882,884

$10,174,860 $'12,201,301

Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Net oPEB Liability associated with the Authority as of

June 30, 20i9, calculated using the heatthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as

what the Net oPEB Liability would be if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate

that is .l- percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the cunent rate:

June 30. 2019
1o/o At the Healthcare 1Yo

Decrease Cost Trend Rate lncrease

Authority's proportionate share of
the OPEB liability $8,586,328

1%
Decrease

2.50o/o

$11,764,727

OPEB Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the oPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued Financial Report for the state of New Jersey State Health qelefits-

Local Government Rethed Employees Plan. The report may be obtained at State of

New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.o. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey

08625-0295 http://www.state.ni. us/treasury/Densions.
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(14\ COMPENSATEDABSENCES

certain employees are allowed to accumulate (with restrictions) unused vacation

benefits and sick leave. Accrued expenses related to these costs included in current

liabilities at December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $201,569 and $215'327'
respectively.

(15) LITIGATION SETTLEMENT RELATED TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

The Authority was a party defendant in an action initiated in the New Jersey Superior
Court, Chancery Division, Union County, by the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection. A public interest environmental group was granted
permission by the Court to intervene in the action of the plaintiff. The plaintiffs alleged
that the Authority violated several provisions of its New Jersey Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NJPDES) Permit over a period of lime. The Authority denied the
allegations and asserted defenses to the plaintiffs' claims. While in trial, the parties

agreed on a settlement of all claims among the parties. A $965,000 provision for the
litigation settlement was included as a charge to operations in the year ended
December 31, 2000. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreement, the Authority
paid $365,000 in the year 2001 and the remaining $600,000, with interest, was paid in

the year 2002. The basic terms of the settlement included in a Judicial Consent Order
(JCo) entered by the Court in October, 2001 that required the Authority to significantly
increase and improve its treatment capabilities and the effluent quality The
requirements of the JCO were incorporated into the Authority's Year 2002 Capital

lmprovement Program (ClP). The CIP included the following segments: (i) Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP) improvements; (ii) Gravity Relief Sewer (GRS); and (iii) a

Power Generating Sludge Drying Facility (Cogeneration Facility). The CIP established
short, intermediate and long-term schedules for achieving permit compliance and closing
the Authority's combined sewer overflows. The requirements of the JCO have been

satisfied.
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(16) LITIGATION AND RELATED MATTERS

During the year 2009, litigation was commenced by the Authority in connection with the

Authoiity's bogeneration Facility (the "Facility"). The RVSA constructed the Facility on

the basis that operating the Facility as the WWTP'5 primary power source would lower

annual operating costsby over g1 million per year. lt was determined that operating the

Facility as designed actually imposed increases in operating costs to the Authority. .on
Marcn 2+, 2Oi the RVSA filed a Demand for Arbitration asserting claims against

various parties including the design engineer, the construction oversight manager, the

general ;ontractor, the supplier ofthe gas generators and other parties. A related action

ivas commenced by the Authority on October 1, 2012 against parties with whom the

Authority did not have an arbitration requirement. The Authority continued to investigate

the extent to which it can mitigate its damages. Certain settlements were realized in

201|7 on both the arbitration Lnd litigation with several parties who had arbitration

provisions in their contracts.

Efforts to resolve the dispute were successful. Settlements with the third parties

aggregated approximately $7.1 million of which $850 thousand was received in 2016.

in6 r6maining $6.2 million is being paid under the terms of a Funding Agreement with

remaining payments as of December 31, 2019 as follows:

Period Annual Amount Total Amount

20201o2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

$234,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900,000

$2,808,000
265,000
300,000
500,000
750,000
900.000

$5523^000

Settlement payments of $234,000 were received in each of the years ended

December St,-ZOts and 2018. lnterest income is being recorded on the funding

agreement as payments are received.
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(17) COMMITMENTSANDCONTINGENCIES

A. The Authority's Year 2002 Capital lmprovement Program (ClP), with a cost of
approximately 9225 million is discussed in Note 15. A substantial portion (95%) of
such costs is related to the Judicial Consent order (JCO).

The major sources of financing for the CIP were borrowings under the NJIB loan
program and the issuance of Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABS). Total borrowings
outstanding under the NJIB TrusuFund Loan Program related to the CIP at

December 31, 2019 were $74 million. The NJIB borrowings outstanding at
December 31, 2019 mature in the Year 2035. The CABS, with an issue value of
$34.7 million and a maturity value of $112.9 million, will be paid over a twelve-year
period beginning in the Year 2024 and ending in the Year 2035.

Debt service payment requirements related to the year 2002 CIP will continue to be a
significant component of assessments to member municipalities through the Year
2035. Annual debt service payment requirements will be in the $13 million range
through the Year 2024, $12 million in the Year 2O25 and in the $10 million range
each year thereafter through the Year 2035. A significant portion of the Authority's
operating revenues are generated by annual assessments to its member
municipalities (96% for the year ended December 31 , 2019).

B. In January 2017, the Authority signed an agreement for a Public Private Partnership
(PPP) to accept specified feedstock (food waste) for co digestion with its bio solids
and entered into a contract with an initial term of 10 years with an optional renewal
for 3 to 10 years. The contract is a design/build construction contract which entails
the refurbishing of an existing sludge thickening tank that is being utilized as a
feedstock receiving station. The project is expected to generate energy savings, tip
fees, and energy credits over the first 10 years approximating $6 million which will be
used to offset the cost of operating the Authority. The project is expected to take 3 to
4 years to ramp up to maximum operations. Live operations began in April 201 8 with
feedstock deliveries. The ofiicial contracted commercial operating date began
August 1, 2018 after full acceptance of the conslruction project and the appurtenant
equipment.

C. ln conjunction with the aforementioned PPP project, in December 2017 the Authority
issued a $2.0 million Notewith the NJlBthatisdue June30,2021. fhe Note bears
no interest. This interim financing was secured for the construction of the Food
Waste Station. ln April 2018 the Note was increased to approximately $2.4 million.
The Authority expects to permanently finance the Note prior to maturity through the
NJIB financing program. Permanent financing is expected to consist of 75% ofthe
bond to bear no interest while 25o/o to bear interest at then current market rates.
Each bond is expected to be amortized on a level debt service basis for a period of
not less than 20 years and not more than 30 years.
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(17) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

D. ln December 2017 the Authority issued a $4.2 million Note with the NJIB that is due

June 30, 2021. fhe Note bears no interest. This interim financing was secured for
improvements to the Authority's Digesters and Gas Flares. The Authority expects to
permanently finance the Note prior to maturity through the NJIB financing program'

Permanent financing is expected to consist of 75o/o of the bond to bear no interest

while 25% to bear interest at then cunent market rates. Each bond is expected to be

amortized on a level debt service basis for a period of not less than 20 years and not

more than 30 years.

(18) GRANTAGREEMENT

The Authority has been awarded and has received grant funds under the FEMA Hazard

Mitigation Giant Program award. Under a sub-grant agreement, the Authority has been

awa-rded a grant of $225 lhousand toward estimated equipment enhancement project

costs of $32-O thousand. The project has been completed and grant funds were received

in 2019.

(19) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial statement

date througl.rAugust 20, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available

to be issued. Based on this evaluation, the Authority has noted that costs approximating

$750 thousand were incurred in 2020 due to the coVlD-l9 Pandemic. The Authority

expects to fully recover these costs under the CARES Act from Union and Middlesex

Counties.

The Authority also notes that a dispute with a contractor resulted in a verbal settlement

agreement. The Authority has accrued the anticipated settlement amount for the

completion of the contract.

The Authority has determined that no further subsequent events have occurred which

require disclosure in the financial statements
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OPERATING AND
REVENUE FUNDS

AND INVESTMENT IN
CAPITAL ASSETS. NET

26,290,500 $
1,299,785

207,A44
8,843

$ 27.806.972 $

$ 9,879,345 $
3,498,608

482,700
(498'030)

8,961,850

RATE
STABILIZATION

FUND

CAPITAL
REPLACEMENT

FUND

DEBT SERVICE
FUND TOTAL 2019

$ 26,290,s00 $
1,299,785

207,844

SCHEDULE 1

TOTAL 2018

25,060,000
865,105

79,083

147,O97
48,388

5,787

MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORTIY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION RESERVED AND UNRESERVED

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2019 AND 2018

OPERATING
RESERVE

FUND

Operatlng Revenues:
Member Annual Assessmsnts
Disctrarge, Permil and Other Fees
Food Waste Fees
Other lncome, Not

Operating Expenses:
Costs of Providing Services
General and Adminislrative
Pension Exponse Charge
OPEB Expense Charge
Dsprecialion

Total Ooemtino ExDenses

Operating lncome

Nonoperatin g Revenues (EPenses):
lnteresl lncome - Unrestnded Funds $
lnterest Income - Restricled Funds
Capilal Liligation Settl€menls
Grant lncome/Forgiveness
Grants
lnterest Expense, Nel

lncome (Loss) Before Transfers

lnterfund Transaclions

Net Posil'ron, Beginnlng of Year

Net Position, End of Year

$-$

8,843 13,027

$ 27,806,972 $ 2A'O17 ,215

9,879,345 t 9,314,104
3,498,608 3,588,528

492,7N 269,11 1

(498,030) ',198,046

8,961,850 8,762,529

s 22.324.473 $ 22,132,318

s 5.482.499 $ 3,884,897

$ 22,324,473 I -------------- =- $

$ 5,482,4sO S --__-___________ $

1E5,708 $

225,000
(2,205,780)

$ 1E5,7oB $
60,788 60,788

225.000
(2,080,563) (4,286,343) (4'443'253)

3,687,427 $
(2,019,77s) $ 1,667,652 S (357,084)

s (2,76e,889) $ 1O0,OOO $ 586,000 $ 't52,500 $ 1,931,389 $

$ 33.767,554 $ 2OO,OOO $ s77,244 $ 

- 

3,355'OOO $ 1'010'576 $ 39',310',374 g 37',il2',722
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SCHEDULE 2

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORIry

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, GASH OISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -

UNRESTRICTED ACCOUNTS (OPERATING AND REVENUE ACCOUNTS)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash Receipts:
Member Annual Assessments
Discharge Fees
Permit Fees
Sewer Connection Fees
Food Waste Fees
lnterest on lnvestments
Capital Litigation Settlement (Principal and lnterest)
Other, Net
Transfers from Restricted Funds

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents Available

Gash Disbursements:
Operations
Transfers to Restricted Funds

Total Cash Disbursements

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$ 28,609,297 $ 26,154,551

$ 3,352,788 $ 2,588,092

TOTAL 2019

$ 2,588,092

$ 26,290,500
1,023,183

249,527
14,150

224,132
63,535

8,966
1,500,000

$ 31,962,085

$ 13,638,517
14,970,780

TOTAL 2018

$ 2,588,222

$ 25,060,000
567 ,2'19
213,630

9,403
40,757
16,385

234,000
13,027

$ 28,742,643

$ 12,664,289
13,490,262
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CAPITAL
REPLACEMENT

FUND

391,244 $

586,000

OPERATING
RESERVE

FUND

3,202,500 $

BUILDING
AND

EOUIPMENT
FUND

424,813 $

1,024,332
225,000

234,000

CONSTRUCTION
FUND

1,659 $

DEBT SERVICE
FUND

1,841,975 $

60,788

12,732,280

TOTAL
201 9

5,862,191

1,024,332
22s,OOO

60,788
234,000

14,970,780

SCHEDULE 3

TOTAL
2018

$ 5,483,700

4,657,931

48,389

13,490,262
484,000

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS'

CHANGES IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS-RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

YEARS ENDEO DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning ofYear
Cash Receipts:

Proceeds from the NJIB Loan Program
Grant Funds Received
lnterest on lnvestments
Capital Litigation Settlement
Transfers From Unrestricted Funds
Transfers From Other Funds

Total Cash Receipts

Cash Disbursements:
Payments of Bond PrinciPal
Payments of Bond lnterest
Capilal Assets
Transfers lo Unrestricted Funds

Transfers to Other Funds

Total Cash Disbursements

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End ofYear

1,652,500

$ s77,244 $ 4,855,000 $ 1,90S,145 $ 1,659 $ 14,635,043 $ 22,377,091 $ 24'164'282

$ $ 11,427,016 $
1,569,627

1,626,367

1,500,000

1.500.000 1,626,367 12,996,643 16,123,010 18,302,091

$ 977,244 $ 3,3ss,000 $ 28',1,778 $ 1,6s9 $ 1,638,400 $ 6,254,081 $ 5,862,191::

1 1,427,0'16 $

1,569,627
1,626,367
1,500,000

11,496,520
1,521,970
4,799,601

484,000

56



SCHEDULE 4
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORIry

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES
AND COSTS FUNDED BY OPERATING
REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

Revenues:
Member Annual Assessments:
Township of Woodbridge
City of Rahway
Town of Westfield
Township of Springfield
Township of Clark
Township of Cranford
Township of Scotch Plains
Borough of Kenilworth
Borough of Mountainside
Borough of GaMood
Borough of Roselle Pa*

Total MemberAssessments

Other Operating lncome:
Discharge Fees
Food Waste Fees
Permit Fees
Sewer Connection Fees
Grants
Claim Settlement
Other lncome, Net

Total Other Ooeratino lncome

lnterest on lnvesiments - Operating Fund

TOTAL REVENUES

351,423 351,423 396,938

$ 26,290,s00 $ 26,290,500 $ 25,060,000

2019
BUDGET

$ 6,939.142 $
3,99'1,702
4,068,672
2,6/,6,409
2,148,595
1,852,138
1,511,843
'1,052,977

978,076
749,523

2019
ACTUAL

6,939,142 $
3,991,702
4,068,672
2,646,409
2,148,595
1,852,138
1,51't,843
1,052,977

978,076
749,523

2018
ACTUAL

6,53s,702
4,124,408
3,770,425
2,598,606
1,997,106
1,671,502
1,430,752

908,922
927,921
697,7'18

$ 225,000
200,000
205,000

'15,000

234,000

$ 879,000

$ 15,000

$ 27,184,500

$ 1,029,608
207,844
256,027

14,150
225,000
234,000

8,966

$ 1,975,595

$ 63,535

$ 28,329,630

$ 642,224
79,083

213,63'1
9,250

234,000
13,O27

$ 1,191,215

$ 21,874

$ 26,273,089
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWEMGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES
AND COSTS FUNDED BY OPEMTING
REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Expenses:
Costs of Providing seMces:
Labor
Supervision
Fringe Benefits
Util,ties
Residual Disposal
Maintenance
Compliance Monitoring
Chemicals and Fuels
Permit Fees
Other

Total Costs of Providing Services

General and Administrative Expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benelits
Professional Services
General lnsurance
lnformation Technology
Other

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Other Costs Funded by Revenues:
Debt Service Payment Requirements
Capital Replacement Fund Appropriatlon
Rate Stabilization Fund
Operating Reserve Compliance Requirement

Total Other Costs

TOTAL COSTS

Unreserved Retained Earnings Utilized

Net Total Appropriations

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER COSTS

2019
BUDGET

$ 2,505,000
825,000

1,653,800
1,530,000

460,000
1,495,000

419,000
375,000
145,000
185,000

$ 9,592,800

$ 1,750,000
900,000
584,950
275,000
115,000
202,250

$ 3,827,200

$ 13,210,000
650,000
100,000
152,500

2019
ACTUAL

$ 2,883,381 $
734,175

1,421,78'l
1,438,637

550,188
1,704,940

398,172
426,261
126,382

2018
ACTUAL

2,898,400
563,670

1,486,090
1,540,694

446,421
1,337,234

375,323
359,179
146,139

195,428 160,954

$ _____1,829.91!_ $ s,314,104

s 1,4U,422 $
987,453
516,368
266,200
102,250

1,486,559
1,068,534

489,808
262,480
'107,038

'13,018,490

550,000
100,000

161,915 174,109

$ 3,498.608 $ 3,588,528

$ 13,420,000 $
650,000
100,000

$ 14,112,500 $ 14,322,500 S 13,780,990

$ 27,532,500

(348,000)

27,184,500

$ ------------:-

152,500 112.500

$ 27,700,453 $ 26,683,622

(348,000) (s83,000)

27 ,352,453 26,100,622

$ ________sTlllL $ __-___j72/f/-
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SCHEDULE "R-1"

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITYS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN YEARS

Measurement
Date Ending

June 30.

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Authority's
Proportion

of the Net Pension
Liabilitv (Asset)

0.0532509458%
0.0533141302%
0.0530453797%
0.0547099070%
0.057 47 473100/o
0.0603872500%
0.0598450444%

Authority's
Proportionate

Share of
the Net Pension
Liabilitv (Asset)

10,177,314 $
9,981,863

11,907,625
16,203,505
13,379,199
11,889,949
10,783,169

Authority's
Covered-Employee

Pavroll

3,685,013
3,701,026
3,812,625
3,956,545
4,165,545
4,247 ,984
4,122,659

Authority's
Propoffon

of the Net Pension
Liabillty (Asset)
as a percentage
of it's Covered-

Emplovee Pavroll

276.18o/o

269.71%
312.32%
409.54%
321.19o/o

279.900/0
261.56'/o

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

as a percentage
of the total

Pension Liabilitv

48.72%
52.08%
47 .92./"
40.13o/o

48.10%
53.60%
5A.270k

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.



SCHEDULE 'R.2"

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
IAST TEN YEARS

Year
Ending

December 31.

2013 $
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Contractually
Required

Contribution

401,235
439,s14
456,048
486,035
532,442
548,35E
582,1 16

Contributions in
Relation to the
Contraclually

Required
contributions

40't ,235
439,514
456,048
486,035
532,442
548,358
582,116

Contribution
Oeficiency
(Excess)

Authority's
Covered-

Employee
Pavroll

3,724,815
3,840,814
4,046,905
4,186,024
4,165,545
4,247 ,984
4,122,659

Contributions as
a Percentage of

Covered-
Employee

Pawoll

10.77%
11.M%
11 .270/0

11.61%
'12.78%

12.910/o

14.12%

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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SCHEDULE'R.3'

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)

NOTE TO RSI III

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 . 2019

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms

None

Change in assumptions

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long{erm expected rate
of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change
in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
(3.87%) to the current measurement date (3.50%), resulting in a
change in the discount rate from 5.66% to 6.28%. This change in the
discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions
under GASB No. 68.
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Measuremen!
Date Ending

June 30.

2017
2018
2019

Authority's
Proportion

of the Net OPEB
Liabilitv (Asset)

0.077204%
0.08?075%
0.0751130k

Authority's
Proportionate

Shate of
the Net OPEB
Liabilitv (Asset)

$ 15,761 ,806 $
12,858,377
10,174,860

Authority's
Covered-Employee

Pavroll

4,165,545
4,247,984
4,122,659

Authority's
Proportion

of the Net oPEB
Liability (Asset)

as a Percentage
of it's Covered-

Emplovee Pavroll

378.39%
302.690/o
246.80%

SCHEDULE'S.1'

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

as a Percentage
of the Total

OPEB Liabilitv

1.030/"
1.97./"
1.98%

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

LAST TEN YEARS

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.



SCHEDULE "S.2'

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITYS CONTRIBUTIONS

STATE HEALTH BENEFITS LOCAL GOVERNMENT RETIRED EMPLOYEES PLAN
LAST TEN YEARS

Year
Ending

December 31.

Contractually
Required

Contribution

355,430
383,645
584,583

Contributions in
Relation to the
Contractually

Required
Contributions

355,430
383,645
584,583

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

Authority's
Covered-

Employee
Pavroll

4,165,545
4,247,984
4,122,659

Contributions as
a Percentage of

Covered-
Employee

Pavroll

8.53./.
9.03%
14.18o/o

-0-
-0-
-0-

2017 $
2018
?019

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE "S-3"

NOTE TO RSI III

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

Change in benefit terms

ln 2019, there were slight changes to the Chapter 48 provisions'

Change in assumPtions

ln 2019, the discount rate changed to 3.50% from 3.87%, and there were changes in the assumed heallh

care cost trend, ppo/HMO futuie retiree elections, and excise tax assumptions. Further, decrements,

salaryscale,andmortalityassumptionswereupdatedbasedontheJulyl,2ol3.June30,20lSPFRS
and july 1, iO1+ - June 30.2018'PERS expeience studies. For mortality related to PFRS members and

retirees, the pub-2010 ,'Saiety" classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational

mortality improvement proieciions from the centralyear using Scale MP-2019 was used 
. 
For.mortality

related to PERS members and relirees, the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted

moltality table with fully generational mortaliiy improvement proiections from the central year using scale

MP-2019 was used.

ln2olS,thediscountratechangedto3.STo/olrom3.58%,therewerechangesinthecensus,claimsand
premiums experience and a deciease in the assumed health care cost trend and excise tax assumptions'

ln 2017, the discount rate changed to 3.58% from 2 85%'
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

DECEMBER 31. 2019

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS
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Martin C. Rothfelder

John J. Tomaine

James J. Meehan

Karen A. Musialowicz

Oennis A. Estis, Esq.

Greenbaum, Rowe, Smith & Davis, LLP

Howard Mafteson, P.E.

CDM Smith, lnc.
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Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner
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Commissioner
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Commissioner
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

DECEMBER 31. 2019

GENERAL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



ft- SuPLEE, CLooNEY & CoMPANY
re crntrnroo Puslrc Accou*rANrs

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090'2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

TNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANGE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STAN DARDS

The Board of Commissioners
Rahway Valley Sewerage AuthoritY
Rahway, New JerseY 07065

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Rahway

Valey Sewerage Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to

the financial statements, which collectively tomprise Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's financial

statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Augusl20,2020'

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Rahway Valley

Sewerage Autholity's control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit

procedries that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on-

the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's internai control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on

the effectiveness of Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's internal control'

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that. a

material misstatement of the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's financial statements will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant .deficiency.is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal control that might

be material weaknesses or significant defrciencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did

not iOentity any deficiencies in-internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Supr,ur, Cr,ooNnv & ConpeNv

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rahway Valley Sewerage
Authority's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemenls,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Aud iti ng Sta ndard s.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conlrol and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Rahway Valley Sewerage
Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

August 20, 2020
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fr^ SuPLEE, ClooNEY & CoMPANY
\r, Crntrrrno Pusl.rc AccouNrANrs

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey o7o9o'2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Commissioners
Rahway Valley Sewerage AuthoritY
Rahway, New Jersey 07065

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal Program

We have audited the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's compliance with the types of

compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplemenf that could have a direct and

material effect on each of the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's major federal programs for the

year ended December 31, 2019. The Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority' majqr federal programs are

identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs.

M a n ag em enf 's ResPon si bi I itY

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Au d i tof s Res pon si bil itY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Rahway Valley

Sewerage Authority's major federal programs based on -our audit of the types of compliance

requirerients referrld to a-bove. We condlcted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
-to 

finan.cial

audits contained in Goveinment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States; and the audit requirements otlNe 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (cFR) Part 200,

unlform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform

ihe audit to obtain ieasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major fede-ral

program occuned. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Rahway Valley

b"i"rrg" Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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Supr,nn, Cr,ooNnv & ConrpeNv

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal delermination of the Rahway

Valley Sewerage Authority's compliance.

Opinlon on Each Maior Federal Program

ln our opinion, the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority complied, in all material respects, with

the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on

each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31 , 2019

Report on lnternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority is responsible for establishing and

maintaining 6ffective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance tequirements

refened tJabove. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Rahway

Valley Sewerage Authority's iniernal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could

have a direct a-nd material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances foithe purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for

each ma1oi federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance

with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internat control over comptiance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or emptoyees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of

tompliancL requiremLnt of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal

conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over

compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility thal material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a

timeiy basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement

of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control

over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify

any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have nol been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

August 20, 2020 M'49{?
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SCHEDULE 5

RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

FEDERAL GRANT
o.F.D,A, GRANT PROJECT AWARD 2OII CIJUULAIIVE

EEDEEA.GEAtr]9EIPBSiEAU.IIIE IUUEEB fEE]AO IIUEEA AUOIJTI EIEEIDIIUBEg EIEI.TDIIIIEES

ff III!!ED!
D.r.drnr of Etuionm.nLl PDi.c0.o &d.t

NJ D.r*t ntol Etrvro$nhlPEr.ctd NJ.htfrtudr6 B.nk 66.451 2o15ta1a ssaottT-12 I 2,0&l.160 a 3or57 , 2,05a.t30
llJ D.Ortuf,dd Ewlmm.l.l PELclh, IJ.lnlE$udrE a.nk 34.456 2013t201, S:x05a7na 121O,q7 96o'!lte 5.62i.t31
r.1,, o.9.rn dEtuifi@iblPEi.ct n llJ.l.i.{tuc&F B.nk 6ar5a 201tt2o1t s3a05a7n5 2,353.560 '13,793 z14ns

US Deparlment of Homeland Security:
Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed Thru the Shie of New Jersey Hazard Miligalion Grant Program 97.039 201512018 DR-4086-NJ-0304-R 225,000 - 225,000

$ _1856,992_ $ __1,054199_ s ___7,s40,999_
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

NOTE 1: GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the
activity of all federal awards programs of Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority
(Authority). The Authority is defined in the Notes to the Authority's basic financial
statements. All federal financial awards received directly from federal agencies,
as well as federal financial awards passed through other governmental agencies,
is included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
using the accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with amounts repoded in
the Authority's basic financial statements.

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal financial reports.

NOTE 5: OTHER

Matching contributions expended by the Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority in
accordance with terms of the various grants are not reported in the
accompanying schedules.
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RAHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

section I - Summarv of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(1) Type of Auditor's Report lssued: unmodified

(2) lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting:

(a) Material weaknesses identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

(3) Noncompliance material to the basic financial statements
noted? No

Federal Prooram(s)

(1) lnternal Control Over Major Federal Programs:

(a) Material weaknesses identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered' 
to be material weaknesses? No

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major' ' 
f#eral program(s)? 

' 
Unmodified

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported' ' 
in iccordance with the Uniform Guidance? No

(4) ldentification of Major Federal Program(s):
Amounts

Proqram ExDended

Department of Environmental
Protection Agency; Passed Thru
NJ Department of
Environmental Protection $1 ,054,789

(5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750'000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold > $187,500.00 < $750'000.00

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Uniform Guidance? No
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

Section ll - Financiat Statement Audit - Reporled Findinqs Under Government Auditino
Standards

lnternal Control Findinqs

None Reported

Gompliance Findinqs

None Reported

Section lll - Findinos and Questioned Costs Relative to Maior Federal Proorams

Federal Programs - None Reported
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MHWAY VALLEY SEWERAGE AUTHORIry

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

Federal Programs - None Reported
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